
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at 

 

on Tuesday, 20 March 2018 

at 6:00 pm.
S Bovey

Interim Chief Executive 

AGENDA

1. Apologies  

2. Minutes  

3. Declarations of Interest  

4. Deputations / Public Addresses  

5. Matters of Urgency which by reason of special circumstances the 
chair is of the opinion should be considered  

6. Confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order  

7. Confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order  

8. Returning Officer Fees and Expenses  

9. Exclusion of Public and Press  
THE CHAIR TO MOVE:

“THAT THE PUBLIC BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE 
GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH 
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY SECTION 100(1) OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY 
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”

 



1
General Purposes Committee Minutes - Monday, 9 January 2017

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Monday, 9 January 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Sargeant (Chair); Councillor Kilbride (Deputy Chair); 
Councillors Parekh, Russell, Stone and Beardsworth

APOLOGIES: Councillor Aziz and Councillor Marriott

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Councillors Aziz and Marriott. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None. 

3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES
None

4. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED

There were none. 

5. REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES FOR  WEST 
HUNSBURY AND OLD DUSTON WARDS

Councillor Hadland addressed the Committee and stated that he fully supported the 
recommendations contained within the report.

The Chief Executive submitted a report on behalf of the Borough Secretary and 
elaborated thereon. He noted that the report considered the outcome of a 
consultation process which had commenced on the 18th November 2016. It was 
further noted that the Returning Officer’s recommendation was to move the Polling 
Station for the Polling Districts of NSOD3 and NSOD4 from St Luke’s Community 
Centre to Duston United Reform Church and that the boundary between 2 polling 
districts in the West H8unsbury Ward be altered to follow the County Division 
boundary.

Members discussed the report.

RESOLVED: 

1. That the results of the consultation process be considered.

2. That the Returning Officer’s recommendations for Polling Places as set out in 

1

Agenda Item 2



2
General Purposes Committee Minutes - Monday, 9 January 2017

Appendix 1 of the report, be approved.

3. That the changes to be made to existing Polling District boundaries as shown 
in Appendix 2 be approved.

4. That the Polling Place for NSOD3 and NSOD4 in Old Duston Ward be Duston 
United Reform Church as shown in Appendix 3 be approved. 

<TRAILER_SECTION>
The meeting concluded at Time Not Specified

2



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Committee Meeting Date:
20 March 2018

Policy Document: Not applicable

Directorate:
Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning

Accountable Cabinet Member: 
Councillor Tim Hadland

 

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out the background to and the reasons for making the Tree Preservation 
Order, provide an outline of Government advice and seek to answer the 
objections raised to the Order.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Tree Preservation Order No. 232 be confirmed.

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 Tree Preservation Order No. 232 comprises one ash tree that stands on the 
open space to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 
9AT: the TPO shows the location of the tree (see Appendix 1).

3.1.2 On 21 November 2017 a telephone call was received from a local tree care 
contractor concerned that he was being asked to remove the tree.

3.1.3 A site visit was made on 22 November and a Tree Preservation Order was 
made on 23 November 2017 and served on the owner of the land and the 
owner of 27 Knights Court (Appendix 2). 

Report Title Tree Preservation Order No. 232 land to the front of 27 
Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT

Appendices 1, 2, 3, 
4 & 5.
Photographs 1 & 2.

3

Agenda Item 6



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

3.1.4 A letter objecting to the Tree Preservation Order was received on 12 
December (Appendix 3). The objector listed a range of concerns, including 
that the tree’s canopy encroaches toward their property and that if the tree 
were to fail in whole or in part their property might be at risk, and that the path 
near the tree’s base is being lifted by the expanding tree roots.

3.1.5 The objector is also dismissive of the authority’s assertion that the tree has 
considerable public amenity.

3.1.6 The final point raised by the objector is that if the Order is confirmed it will no 
longer be possible to manage the tree, this is of course erroneous.

3.1.7 The Tree Preservation Order remains unconfirmed because of the objections 
made by the owner of 27 Knights Court.

3.1.8 The owner of 27 Knights Court has been written to (Appendix 4) but their 
objection has not been withdrawn.

3.2 Issues
3.2.1 Government Advice
3.2.2 Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to 

them to be ‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the 
preservation of trees or woodlands in their area’.

3.2.3 Authorities can either initiate this process themselves or in response to a 
request made by any other party. When deciding whether an Order is 
appropriate, authorities are advised to take into consideration what ‘amenity’ 
means in practice, what to take into account when assessing amenity value, 
what ‘expedient’ means in practice, what trees can be protected and how they 
can be identified.

3.2.4 ‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when 
deciding whether it is within their powers to make an Order.

3.2.5 When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities 
are advised to develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a 
structured and consistent way.

3.2.6 It may be expedient to make an Order if the authority believes there is a risk 
of trees being felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would have a 
significant impact on the amenity of the area.

3.2.7 The Tree
3.2.8 The tree is a large mature ash tree, see photographs 1 and 2.
3.2.9 It is approximately 14m in height with a crown spread of approximately 17m 

and a trunk diameter of 835 mm.
3.2.10 The tree appears to be in good condition. The base has normal buttress root 

formation with no evidence of cavities or decay. The trunk is unremarkable 
with no apparent defects, decay or cavities. The branch structure appears 
normal with well-formed unions. There is some deadwood within the crown. 
The previous year’s annual shoot extension and leaf size would indicate that 
the tree is displaying normal vigour. 

3.2.11 There is evidence that the tree was subject to some remedial pruning several 
years ago to reduce the overall spread of the canopy.

3.2.12 The tree appears to be in good health and condition with a well-balanced 
canopy. It can reasonably be expected that the tree has a safe useful life 
expectancy of at least 20-40 years.

3.2.13 The tree has been assessed using TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for 
Preservation Orders). TEMPO is an evaluation assessment to determine a 
tree’s suitability for protection by a Tree Preservation Order. The TEMPO 
system is open, to a degree, to the interpretation and judgement of the 

4



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

assessor. However, it is recognised in the industry as a defensible method of 
assessment and is used by many Local Planning Authorities.

3.2.14 The TEMPO system includes an amenity assessment by determining the 
tree’s suitability for a TPO by considering condition, retention span, relative 
public visibility and other factors.  It then considers the expediency and finally 
provides a decision guide based on the numerical score. The assessment of 
the ash tree arrived at a score of 22, TPO Definitely merits TPO (Appendix 5).

3.2.15 Response to objections
3.2.16 In reply to the concern in the letter of objection that the Order will prevent 

management it was stated that the Order will simply allow the planning 
authority to be comfortable that any pruning that may be proposed is 
reasonable and proportionate.

3.2.17 The letter of objection was also concerned that the tree’s canopy appeared 
too close to their home, but our reply noted that this concern could be 
addressed by careful pruning to increase the clearance between the branch 
tips and the house.   Furthermore, the author observed that if a branch were 
to snap it would go through the roof of the house, we felt that there was still a 
significant clearance between the tips of the branches and the dwelling as a 
result of the last pruning regime.

3.2.18 The letter of objection also raised issues to do with insurance, but they were 
not addressed in our response as they are outside our competence.

3.2.19 The Order was made because it was felt that the tree had considerable public 
amenity and because it forms a principle feature of the open space 
surrounded by the neighbouring properties, and it was visible from further 
afield.   It is also thought that the tree was the reason that the green was 
retained when the area was developed.

3.2.20 A Tree Preservation Order is not be seen as a restriction to appropriate or 
suitable tree maintenance.

3.2.21 Conclusion
3.2.22 It is concluded that the ash tree is an important feature within the local 

landscape and contributes to the overall amenity of the area.
3.2.23 The objections have been considered but it is concluded that the protection of 

the tree is necessary to avoid the possible extensive work that could be 
undertaken without statutory protection. Accordingly, it is recommended that 
the committee confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 232.  
 

3.3 Choices (Options)

3.3.1 Option 1 - Confirm the Tree Preservation Order.
3.3.2 Option 2 - Allow provisional Tree Preservation Order to lapse without 

confirmation.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy
4.1.1 The report does not set new policy and does not have any implication on any 

existing policies.

4.2 Resources and Risk
4.2.1 The tree is under private ownership and is therefore the responsibility of the 

land owner.

5



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

4.2.2 The only financial implications are the serving of the Tree Preservation Order 
(already served), the confirming of the order (if approved) and officer time 
dealing with any applications for work to the tree.

4.3 Legal
4.3.1 The tree remains the legal responsibility of the tree owner. The only legal 

implications are the Council’s statutory responsibilities to administer any 
application for work to the tree.

4.4 Equality
4.4.1 It is not anticipated that including the tree in the Tree Preservation Order will 

have any direct impact on equalities, community safety, or economic issues or 
a perceptible impact on the social well-being, leisure and culture, or health 
issues.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 No additional consultees

4.6 Other Implications

4.6.1 With regard to sustainability, the protection of the tree by tree preservation 
order should prevent unnecessary pruning or premature removal and thereby 
ensure its environmental benefits continue for as long as possible.

5. Background Papers

5.1.1 Tree Preservation Order No. 232 land to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little 
Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

5.2 Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders (TEMPO) Survey data sheet 
and decision guide.

Jonathan Hazell, Arboricultural Officer Ext 8812

6



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

Photographs

27 Knights Court

27 Knights Court

7



8



9



10



11



12



PTP007525/00298095

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007525
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

The Secretary
Knights Court Management Co Ltd
45 Sheep Street
Northampton
NN1 2NE

Date: 23 November, 2017

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 232      
LAND TO THE FRONT OF 27 KNIGHTS COURT, LITTLE BILLING, NORTHAMPTON, NN3 9AT

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of a 
mature Ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the tree protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of the land or there is an alternative address (please note a 
copy has also been forwarded to your registered office address), I would be grateful if you 
could notify me of the details so I can consider whether I should serve any further formal 
Notices of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this 
information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along 
with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, 
other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is no need for you 
to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to 
Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your 
questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Encl.

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                              

13



PTP007525/00298095

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007525
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

The Secretary
Knights Court Management Co Ltd
Artisans’ House, 7 Queensbridge
Northampton
NN4 7BF

Date: 23 November, 2017

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 232      
LAND TO THE FRONT OF 27 KNIGHTS COURT, LITTLE BILLING, NORTHAMPTON, NN3 9AT

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of a 
mature Ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the tree protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of the land or there is an alternative address (please note a 
copy has also been forwarded to your Sheep Street office), I would be grateful if you could 
notify me of the details so I can consider whether I should serve any further formal Notices of 
the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this 
information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along 
with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, 
other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is no need for you 
to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to 
Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your 
questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Encl.

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                              

14



PTP007525/00298095

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007525
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Alan David Weekes
27 Knights Court
Little Billing
Northampton
NN3 9AT

Date: 23 November, 2017

Dear Mr Weekes

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 232      
LAND TO THE FRONT OF 27 KNIGHTS COURT, LITTLE BILLING, NORTHAMPTON, NN3 9AT

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of a 
mature Ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the tree protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who resides elsewhere 
(please note a copy has also been forwarded to Leanne Shelswell), I would be grateful if you 
could notify me of the details so I can consider whether I should serve any further formal 
Notices of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this 
information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along 
with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, 
other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is no need for you 
to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to 
Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your 
questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Encl.

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                              

15



PTP007525/00298095

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007525
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Leanne Shelswell
27 Knights Court
Little Billing
Northampton
NN3 9AT

Date: 23 November, 2017

Dear Ms Shelswell

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 232      
LAND TO THE FRONT OF 27 KNIGHTS COURT, LITTLE BILLING, NORTHAMPTON, NN3 9AT

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of a 
mature Ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the tree protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who resides elsewhere 
(please note a copy has also been forwarded to Alan David Weekes), I would be grateful if you 
could notify me of the details so I can consider whether I should serve any further formal 
Notices of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this 
information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along 
with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, 
other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is no need for you 
to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to 
Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your 
questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Encl.

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                              

16



PTP007525/00298095

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007525
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Mr John Socha
Orchard Block Management Services Ltd
Adams House, 1 Adams Avenue
Northampton
NN1 4LQ

Date: 4th December, 2017

Dear Mr Socha

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 232      
LAND TO THE FRONT OF 27 KNIGHTS COURT, LITTLE BILLING, NORTHAMPTON, NN3 9AT

Thank you for your email advising that your company is the managing agent for Knights Court.

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of a 
mature Ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, Little Billing, Northampton, NN3 9AT.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the tree protected under the Order.

I enclose a further copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders 
published by the Government that may answer some of your questions concerning the Order, 
in the event that the one sent to Artisans House has not been forwarded to you, along with a 
further scanned image of the Order and Notice.

Yours sincerely

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Encl.

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                              

17



18



19



General Letter

Directorate of Planning Department
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning The Guildhall

St Giles Square
Northampton. NN1 1DE

Tel: 0300 330 7000
Minicom: (01604) 838970

E-Mail: planning@northampton.gov.uk

Our Ref: ENQ/2017/0764
Contact: Jonathan Hazell
Telephone No: 01604 838790
Email: JHazell@northampton.gov.uk 

Alan Weeks
27 Knights Court
Northampton
Northamptonshire
NN3 9AT

Date: 27 December 2017

Dear Sir/Madam

PROPOSAL: OBJECTION TO TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 232
LOCATION: 27 KNIGHTS COURT

NORTHAMPTON
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE
NN3 9AT

Thank you for your letter dated 1 December with your concerns about Tree Preservation Order 
232.

First, let me put your mind at rest – the Order will not prevent appropriate management, it will 
simply allow the Council as Local Planning Authority to be comfortable that the pruning proposed is 
reasonable and proportionate.   If you, or others, would like to prune the tree then simply apply, 
see our webpages for details, http://www.northampton.gov.uk/trees.

I understand that you might be concerned by how close the canopy appears to be to your home, 
but that can be addressed by careful pruning to increase the clearance between the branch tips 
and the house.    I need not tell you of the tree’s ability to grow back after pruning as you have 
written that it has “grown back with a vengeance”.   In response to your observation that if a branch 
were to snap it would go through the roof of your house – I believe there to still be significant 
clearance between the tips of the branches and your home as a result of the last pruning regime.   
I cannot comment upon your concerns regarding insurance issues other than to observe that the 
tree has been there longer than the property and the tree’s presence may have been noted by third 
parties before now.

The Order was made because it was felt that the tree had considerable public amenity and 
because it was very visible from the other twelve properties surrounding the green, as well as from 
further afield.   I also believe that the tree was the reason that the green was retained within the 
development.

Would you now be prepared to withdraw your objection to the confirmation of the Order? – if so 
could you advise either in writing or by e-mail at jhazell@northampton.gov.uk    If your objection 
were to stand then a report will need to be prepared for consideration by elected members, the 
purpose of the report would be to seek their consent for the confirmation of the order which we 
believe to be “expedient in the interests of public amenity” to quote from the regulations.

20

mailto:JHazell@northampton.gov.uk


I trust that the above comments are of assistance.  Please note, however, that they represent 
the views of an officer only and cannot prejudice any decision of the Council as local planning 
authority.

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Hazell
Planning Officer
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning

21



$zpj3znq5.xlsx
12/03/2018

TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS - TEMPO

Date: 22/11/2017

App:
Mature ash tree to the front of 27 Knights Court, NN3 9AT

Part 1: Amenity assessment
a) Condition & suitability for TPO; where trees in good or fair condition have poor form, deduct 1
point

5 Good Highly suitable

53 Fair Fairly Suitable
1 Poor Unlikely to be suitable
0 Dead/dying/dangerous* Unsuitable

* Relates to existing context and is intended to apply to severe irremediable defects only

b) Retention span (in years) & suitability for TPO

2
5 100+ Highly suitable
4 40-100 Very suitable
2 20-40 Suitable
1 10-20 Just suitable
0 <10* Unsuitable

*Includes trees which are an existing or near future nuisance, including those clearly outgrowing their
context, or which are significantly negating the potential of other trees of better quality

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use

5  Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees Highly suitable

5
4 Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable
3 Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Suitable
2 Young, small, or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable
1 Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size Probably unsuitable

d) Other factors
Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify 12

5 Principal components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees

5
4 Tree groups, or members of groups important for their cohesion
3 Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance
2 Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual
1 Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features (inc. those of indifferent form)

Part 2: Expediency assessment
Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify

5 Immediate threat to tree

53 Foreseeable threat to tree
2 Perceived threat to tree
1 Precautionary only

Part 3: Decision guide

Any 0 Do not apply TPO

22
1 - 6 TPO indefensible
7-11 Does not merit TPO
12-15 TPO defensible
16+ Definitely merits TPO

22



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Committee Meeting Date:
20 March 2018

Policy Document: Not applicable

Directorate:
Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning

Accountable Cabinet Member: 
Councillor Tim Hadland

 

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out the background to and the reasons for making the Tree Preservation 
Order, provide an outline of Government advice and seek to answer the 
objections raised to the Order.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Tree Preservation Order No. 235 be confirmed.

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background
3.1.1 As part of a routine review of our existing Tree Preservation Orders TPO 204 

University of Northampton, Park Campus, Boughton Green Road was found to 
be unsound.   The description of the Groups in Schedule 1 of that Order would 
have provided totally inadequate tree protection: for example the description of 
G1 was “Ash, Silver Birch, Oak, Larch, Sycamore, Pine & Horse Chestnut”.   
Provided that one each of those species remained standing within the extent 
of the G1 as mapped, then the Council would have been powerless to take 
any enforcement action for unauthorised felling.

Report Title Tree Preservation Order No. TPO 235, Boughton Green 
Road, former Park Campus

Appendices 1, 2, 3, 
4, 5, 6 and 7.

23

Agenda Item 7



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

3.1.2 A series of site visits were made and Tree Preservation Order 235 was served 
on 24 January 2018.   The Order comprises nine groups of trees and one 
woodland on the site of the University of Northampton Park Campus, 
Boughton Green Road: the TPO shows the location of the tree groups and the 
woodland (see Appendix 1).

3.1.3 Consideration was given to the master plan for the site when preparing the 
Order so as to not compromise the development opportunity; for example all 
of the individual trees protected under Order 204 have been excluded.

3.1.4 The Tree Preservation Order was served on the University, Persimmon 
Homes Midlands and nine others (Appendix 2). 

3.1.5 A letter from Persimmon Homes Midlands objecting to the Order was received 
on 13 February (Appendix 3) and a second objection from the University of 
Northampton was received on 27 February (Appendix 4).

3.1.6 Persimmon were concerned that the inclusion of so many of the existing trees, 
and so the scale of the Order, might prevent development.

3.1.7 The University objected to the new Order on the grounds that the established 
landscape character of the site had been already been secured through the 
approved Design Code for the site and the existing Order 204.   Their letter of 
objection included a detailed report from an arboricultural consultant on behalf 
of LUC.

3.1.8 The Order remains unconfirmed because of the objections made by both 
Persimmon Homes Midlands and the University of Northampton.

3.1.9 Persimmon Homes Midlands and the University of Northampton have been 
written to (Appendix 5 and 6) but their objections have not been withdrawn.

3.2 Issues
3.2.1 Government Advice
3.2.2 Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to 

them to be ‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the 
preservation of trees or woodlands in their area’.

3.2.3 Authorities can either initiate this process themselves or in response to a 
request made by any other party.   When deciding whether an Order is 
appropriate, authorities are advised to take into consideration what ‘amenity’ 
means in practice, what to take into account when assessing amenity value, 
what ‘expedient’ means in practice, what trees can be protected and how they 
can be identified.

3.2.4 ‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when 
deciding whether it is within their powers to make an Order.

3.2.5 When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities 
are advised to develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a 
structured and consistent way.

3.2.6 It may be expedient to make an Order if the authority believes there is a risk 
of trees being felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would have a 
significant impact on the amenity of the area.

3.2.7 The Trees
3.2.8 A large number of trees are included in the Order; 373 spread across nine 

groups, and a further 375 in the woodland.   The species mix includes both 
conifers and broadleaves.   As noted above consideration was given to the 
master plan when drafting Order 235.

3.2.9 The trees appeared to be in good overall condition and had been subject to 
routine and thorough management by the University. 

24



General Purposes Template/12/03/18

3.2.10 The trees have been assessed using TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for 
Preservation Orders).   TEMPO is an evaluation assessment to determine a 
tree’s suitability for protection by a Tree Preservation Order.   The TEMPO 
system is open, to a degree, to the interpretation and judgement of the 
assessor.   However, it is recognised in the industry as a defensible method of 
assessment and is used by many Local Planning Authorities.

3.2.11 The TEMPO system includes an amenity assessment by determining the 
tree’s suitability for a TPO by considering condition, retention span, relative 
public visibility and other factors.   It then considers the expediency and finally 
provides a decision guide based on the numerical score.   The assessment of 
the tree collections arrived at a score of 20 which definitely merits a TPO 
(Appendix 7).

3.2.12 Response to objections
3.2.13 In reply to Persimmon, a number of broad observations were made, including 

the Council’s concern that the previous Order 204 was unsound, that a 
presumption in favour of protection had been adopted, and that planning 
permission would overrule the TPO.

3.2.14 In reply to the University similar points were made, and some of the 
arguments from LUC concerning their opinion of the validity of the TPO were 
challenged.   Their conclusion was that “there are inadequate grounds for the 
proposed TPO in its current form”, but we were not persuaded by their 
arguments.

3.2.15 The Order was made because it was felt that the trees had considerable 
public amenity as they provide a green backdrop to the current and proposed 
built form, and because they were visible to the public from within and outside 
the site.

3.2.16 A Tree Preservation Order is not be seen as a restriction to appropriate or 
suitable tree maintenance.

3.2.17 The positive case for trees
3.2.18 A Forestry Commission publication from 2010 “The case for trees in 

development and the urban environment” rehearses the many advantages 
that trees provide.   The foreword states “trees increase economic as well as 
personal well-being, with property values boosted by their presence” and 
provide measureable health benefits, as well as economic, environmental and 
social benefits (https://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-casefortrees.pdf/$file/eng-
casefortrees.pdf).

3.3 Conclusion
3.3.1 It is concluded that the trees make an immense contribution to the local 

landscape and contribute to the overall amenity of the area.
3.3.2 The objections have been considered but it is concluded that the protection of 

the trees is necessary to preserve their amenity and to avoid the possibly 
extensive removals that could be undertaken without statutory protection.   
Accordingly, it is recommended that the Committee confirm Tree Preservation 
Order No. 235.  

3.4 Choices (Options)
3.4.1 Option 1 - Confirm the Tree Preservation Order. 
3.4.2 Option 2 - Allow provisional Tree Preservation Order to lapse without 

confirmation.

25

https://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-casefortrees.pdf/$file/eng-casefortrees.pdf
https://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-casefortrees.pdf/$file/eng-casefortrees.pdf


General Purposes Template/12/03/18

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy
4.1.1 The report does not set new policy and does not have any implication on any 

existing policies.

4.2 Resources and Risk
4.2.1 The trees are under private ownership and is therefore the responsibility of the 

land owner.
4.2.2 The only financial implications are the serving of the Tree Preservation Order 

(already served), the confirming of the order (if approved) and officer time 
dealing with any applications for work to the tree.

4.3 Legal
4.3.1 The trees remain the legal responsibility of the tree owner.   The only legal 

implications are the Council’s statutory responsibilities to administer any 
application for work to the trees.

4.4 Equality
4.4.1 It is not anticipated that including the tree in the Tree Preservation Order will 

have any direct impact on equalities, community safety, or economic issues or 
a perceptible impact on the social well-being, leisure and culture, or health 
issues.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)
4.5.1 No additional consultees

4.6 Other Implications
4.6.1 With regard to sustainability, the protection of the tree by Tree Preservation 

Order should prevent unnecessary pruning or premature removal and thereby 
ensure its environmental benefits continue for as long as possible.

5. Background Papers

5.1.1 Tree Preservation Order No. 235 Boughton Green Road, former Park 
Campus.

5.2 Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders (TEMPO) Survey data sheet 
and decision guide.

Jonathan Hazell, Arboricultural Officer Ext 8812

26



27



28



29



30



PTP007593/00303673

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland at Boughton Green Road in Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of your property (in the event that a recent transfer is yet to be 
registered with the Land Registry), I would be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I 
can consider whether I should serve on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For 
this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid 
envelope in which to return the completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to 
keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an 
interest in the property there is no need for you to return the form.  (Please note that an 
Interest In Land form is enclosed in respect of each of the titles registered to you in the area 
that are affected by the Preservation Order).  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet 
Protected Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may 
answer some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                               

FIRST CLASS RECORDED Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

The Secretary
The University of Northampton
Sunley Management Centre
Park Campus
Boughton Green Road
Northampton  NN2 7AL

Date: 24 January, 2018

31



PTP007593/00303674

FIRST CLASS RECORDED
The Secretary

Our Ref: LP/PTP007593

Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Taylor Wimpey UK Limited
Gate House, Turnpike Road
High Wycombe
HP12 3NR

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland at Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the trees protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of your property (in the event that a transfer has taken place 
that is not yet registered at the Land Registry), I would be grateful if you could notify me of 
their details so I can consider whether I should serve on them a formal Notice of the making of 
the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this information together with 
a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along with second copy of the form 
for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, 
with an interest in the property there is no need for you to return the form.  
I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation 
Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your questions concerning the 
Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                        

32



PTP007593/00303674

FIRST CLASS RECORDED
The Secretary

Our Ref: LP/PTP007593

Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Persimmon Homes Limited
Persimmon House
Fulford
York  YO19 4FE

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland at Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
every other person who is entitled to fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of the trees protected under the Order.

If you are no longer the owner of your property (in the event that a transfer has taken place 
that is not yet registered at the Land Registry), I would be grateful if you could notify me of 
their details so I can consider whether I should serve on them a formal Notice of the making of 
the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal Notice requesting this information together with 
a pre-paid envelope in which to return the completed form, along with second copy of the form 
for you to keep.  If, however, there are no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, 
with an interest in the property there is no need for you to return the form.  
I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation 
Orders published by the Government that may answer some of your questions concerning the 
Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

                        

33



PTP007593/00303676

Northamptonshire Association of Youth Clubs
Kings Park Conference & Sports Centre
Kings Park Road
Northampton 
NN3 6LL

Our Ref: LP/PTP007593

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

34



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

BLC Leather Technology Centre Limited
Kings Park Road, 
Moulton Park
Northampton
NN3 6JD

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

35



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

The Official Custodian for Charities 
The Becketts & Sargeants Educational Foundation
c/o Messrs Becke Phipps
7 Spencer Parade
Northampton
NN1 5AB

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

36



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Northamptonshire Association of Youth Clubs
Kings Park Road
Moulton Park
Northampton
NN3 6RU

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

37



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Pall Mall 3 Limited
New Burlington House
1075 Finchley Road
London   NW11 0PU

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

38



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Salvesen Insulated Frames Limited
Old Church Chambers
23-24 Sandhill Road
Northampton  NN5 5LH

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

39



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Westleigh Office Park Management Company Ltd
Tudorgate
Grange Business Park
Enderby Road
Whetstone
Leicester  LE8 6EP

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

40



PTP007593/00303676

Derek Goswick Westaway Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Sulby Abbey
Naseby Road
Welford
NN6 6JA

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Mr Westaway

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours sincerely

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

41



PTP007593/00303676

Jennifer Ann Westaway Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Purlieu Farm
Thornby Road
Naseby
NN6 6BY

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Ms Westaway

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

42



PTP007593/00303676

The Secretary Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

UK Leather Federation
Kings Park Road
Moulton Park Industrial Estate
Northampton
NN3 6JD

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

43



PTP007593/00303676

Northamptonshire County Council Our Ref: LP/PTP007593
Your Ref:

Contact: Lisa Pere

Direct Line 01604 837339

E-mail: lpere@northampton.gov.uk

Asset Management
One Angel Square
4 Angel Street
Northampton
NN1 1ED

Date: 24 January, 2018

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990  TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 235
BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS, NORTHAMPTON 2018

I am obliged to inform you that the Council, as Local Planning Authority for the purpose of the 
protection of trees within the Borough, has made a Tree Preservation Order in respect of 
several groups of trees and a woodland in Boughton Green Road, Northampton.

I am required by the Regulations to serve a Notice on the owner and occupier of the land and 
any adjoining landowners who may fell or carry out works to the trees to which the Order 
relates or to work by surface working any materials in, on or under the land.  Accordingly, 
I enclose a formal Notice of the making of the Order together with a copy of the Order that 
includes a plan showing the location of each tree protected under the Order.

If you are not the owner of your property or there is a joint owner who lives elsewhere, I would 
be grateful if you could notify me of their details so I can consider whether I should serve 
on them a formal Notice of the making of the Order.  For this purpose I enclose a formal 
Notice requesting this information together with a pre-paid envelope in which to return the 
completed form, along with second copy of the form for you to keep.  If, however, there are 
no other persons, other than a mortgage lender, with an interest in the property there is 
no need for you to return the form.  I nevertheless enclose a copy of the leaflet Protected 
Tree: A Guide to Tree Preservation Orders published by the Government that may answer 
some of your questions concerning the Order.

Yours faithfully

Lisa Pere
Property Paralegal
Legal Services

Francis Fernandes
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer
Solicitor MBA; LLM; LLB; LARTPI

Legal Services
The Guildhall

St. Giles Square
Northampton  NN1 1DE

Tel:  0300 330 7000

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



 

2018 02 27 tpo 235 persimmon response.doc 

Directorate of  Planning Department 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning The Guildhall 
 St Giles Square 
 Northampton. NN1 1DE 
  

 Tel: 0300 330 7000 
 Minicom: (01604) 838970 
 E-Mail: planning@northampton.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Alan Davies 
Senior Planner 
Persimmon Homes Midlands 
3 Waterside Way 
Bedford Road 
Northampton 
NN4 7XD 
 

Our Ref: TPO 235 

Contact: Jonathan Hazell 

Telephone No: 01604 838812 

Email: JHazell@northampton.gov.uk  

Date: 27 February 2018 

 
 
Dear Alan, 

TPO 235 BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS 

Thank you for your hand delivered letter dated 13 February raising concerns over the above 
TPO. 

Before I respond to some of your points of detail I would make some general overarching 
observations: 

 the previous order, 204, was technically unsound and in reality would have provided 
very limited tree protection and so the new order was considered to be absolutely 
necessary, and 

 because the evolving plans for the development are inevitably fluid then we have 
chosen to adopt a presumption in favour of tree retention, the fine grain can be 
resolved once the plans for the development are finally agreed, and 

 it would be unlikely that we would exclude a tree from the Order because it “may” 
prevent development, the purpose of the Order is to protect public amenity and has 
nothing to do with enabling or frustrating development, and 

 the discussion about appropriate mitigation for the loss of protected will have to take 
place in the future, as above the fine grain can be resolved once the plans are 
agreed, and 

 TPO 235 will not, and cannot, prevent authorised development from proceeding in 
accordance with the agreed plans. 

Group 1 

In our opinion the Order has been made to reflect public amenity, at today’s date as well as a 
consideration of future amenity value, hence the inclusion of the smaller and younger trees.   
However, as noted above, if it is impracticable to retain these trees when the site is being 
actively developed then the planning permission will overrule the Order.  

Group 4 

82

mailto:JHazell@northampton.gov.uk


 

 

The point behind the inclusion of 398 – 471 was that they remain to form the basis of a 
screen between the development site and the neighbour to the south. 

Groups 6 and 7 

You note that three trees in G6 and several in G7 are located close to or within a water 
attenuation pond, but then go on to suggest that the engineer’s calculations have yet to 
establish how many trees are required to be removed from G6.    This illustrates and serves 
to confirm my second general observation precisely.  

Woodland 1 

In the woodland you state again that the attenuation pond and drainage will be far larger than 
the master plan indicates, which I believe helps to justify my presumption in favour of tree 
retention prior to the agreement of the final plans. 

I trust that the above comments are of assistance.  Please note, however, that they represent 
the views of an officer only and cannot prejudice any decision of the Council as local 
planning authority. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Jonathan Hazell 
Project Officer: Arboriculture 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Working pattern: 008:00 – 16:00, Tuesday to Thursday 

83



 

2012 02 27 tpo 235 university response.docx 

Directorate of  Planning Department 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning The Guildhall 
 St Giles Square 
 Northampton. NN1 1DE 
  

 Tel: 0300 330 7000 
 Minicom: (01604) 838970 
 E-Mail: planning@northampton.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Terry Neville OBE 
FCCA FRSA UHFellow 
Chief Operating Officer 
University of Northampton 
Park campus 
Bougton Green Road 
Northampton 
NN2 7AL 
 

Our Ref: TPO 235 

Contact: Jonathan Hazell 

Telephone No: 01604 838812 

Email: JHazell@northampton.gov.uk  

Date: 27 February 2018 

 
 
Dear Mr Neville, 

TPO 235 BOUGHTON GREEN ROAD, FORMER PARK CAMPUS 

Thank you for your hand-delivered letter with accompanying report from LUC (which 
erroneously refers to TPO 234) dated 26 February with your formal objection to the recently 
served TPO 235 Boughton Green Road, former Park Campus. 

We are of course aware of the plans to dispose of the Campus for residential development 
and the serving of TPO 235 was considered to be absolutely necessary to protect the public 
amenity that the established landscape character provides to the staff, students and visitors 
to the Campus, including all the ancillary business undertakings within the site boundary.   
The TPO is being used to protect selected trees and woodlands as we believe their removal 
would have a significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the 
public. 

Once TPO 235 has been confirmed then TPO 204 University of Northampton, Park Campus, 
Boughton Green Road, will be revoked.   In paragraph 4.12 LUC refer to TPO 204 as 
providing significant levels of protection: this is patently not the case as the description of the 
Groups in Schedule 1 of the Order was woefully lax and in reality would have provided totally 
inadequate tree protection.   For example the description of the former G1 (now labelled W1) 
was “Ash, Silver Birch, Oak, Larch, Sycamore, Pine & Horse Chestnut”.   In my 
understanding, provided that one each of those species remained standing within the extent 
of the G1 as mapped, then we would have been powerless to take any enforcement action 
for unauthorised felling, and I am disappointed that LUC have not been able to make the 
same observation. 

We have chosen to adopt a presumption in favour of tree retention within the site boundary 
as the plans for the development are continuously evolving and the fine grain can be 
resolved once the plans for the development are finally agreed.   At that time the discussion 
about appropriate mitigation for the loss of protected will have to take place. 

The serving of TPO 235 will not, and cannot, prevent authorised development from 
proceeding in accordance with the agreed plans once planning permission has been granted, 
but as that is an iterative process so our presumption remains in favour of tree retention. 

The LUC report refers to the DCLG document Tree Preservation Orders: A guide to the 
law and good practice.   That document has been withdrawn as the guidance was not 
updated to address the new regulations and changes to TPO procedures that came into full 

84

mailto:JHazell@northampton.gov.uk


effect on 6 April 2012.   The document was replaced by extensive on-line guidance, see 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas. 

We have served the TPO because we believe it to be “expedient in the interests of amenity 
to make provision for the preservation of trees or woodlands” in the area, particularly as TPO 
204 was technically unsound.   We have also exercised our judgment when considering the 
meaning of amenity deciding that it is reasonable to make the TPO and, using the current 
guidelines, have considered visibility, individual, collective and wider impact, and other 
factors. 

As the trees that are the subject of this TPO surround the Campus and are contained within 
the site it seems to us that the visibility test has been adequately met: “The trees, or at least 
part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or footpath, or 
accessible by the public.”   To try to argue, as it would appear LUC have done in paragraph 
4.2, that the University staff and students are somehow excluded from the definition of “the 
public” would seem to me to be absurd. 

When considering the individual, collective and wider impact we have been cognisant of the 
recommendation to consider the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees 
or of woodlands by reference to its or their characteristics.   This explains why the individual 
trees from TPO 204 are no longer included in TPO 235, and reflects our opinion of the future 
potential as an amenity that some trees hold, as well as their contribution to, and relationship 
with, the man-made landscape. 

We believe that we have followed the spirit of the guidance and served the TPO to “protect 
selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a significant negative impact on 
the local environment and its enjoyment by the public.”   We also believe that we are able to 
demonstrate that the serving of the TPO will demonstrate that protection would bring a 
reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future. 

I am not persuaded by the conclusion in the LUC report that “there are inadequate grounds 
for the proposed TPO in its current form”. 

Would you now be prepared to withdraw your objection to the confirmation of the TPO?   If 
your objection were to stand then a report will need to be prepared for consideration by 
elected members, the purpose of the report would be to seek their consent for the 
confirmation of the order which we believe to be “expedient in the interests of public 
amenity”. 

I trust that the above comments are of assistance.  Please note, however, that they represent 
the views of an officer only and cannot prejudice any decision of the Council as local 
planning authority. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Jonathan Hazell 
Project Officer: Arboriculture 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Working pattern: 008:00 – 16:00, Tuesday to Thursday 

85

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas


$xd3vvxlt.xlsx
12/03/2018

TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS - TEMPO

Date: 17/01/2018

App:
Boughton Green Road, the former Park Campus

Part 1: Amenity assessment
a) Condition & suitability for TPO; where trees in good or fair condition have poor form, deduct 1
point

5 Good Highly suitable

53 Fair Fairly Suitable
1 Poor Unlikely to be suitable
0 Dead/dying/dangerous* Unsuitable

* Relates to existing context and is intended to apply to severe irremediable defects only

b) Retention span (in years) & suitability for TPO

5
5 100+ Highly suitable
4 40-100 Very suitable
2 20-40 Suitable
1 10-20 Just suitable
0 <10* Unsuitable

*Includes trees which are an existing or near future nuisance, including those clearly outgrowing their
context, or which are significantly negating the potential of other trees of better quality

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use

5  Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees Highly suitable

5
4 Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable
3 Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Suitable
2 Young, small, or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable
1 Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size Probably unsuitable

d) Other factors
Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify 15

5 Principal components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees

4
4 Tree groups, or members of groups important for their cohesion
3 Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance
2 Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual
1 Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features (inc. those of indifferent form)

Part 2: Expediency assessment
Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify

5 Immediate threat to tree

13 Foreseeable threat to tree
2 Perceived threat to tree
1 Precautionary only

Part 3: Decision guide

Any 0 Do not apply TPO

20
1 - 6 TPO indefensible
7-11 Does not merit TPO
12-15 TPO defensible
16+ Definitely merits TPO

86



General Purposes Template/12/03/18 

 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
 
Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 

  
20th March 2018 
 
No 
 
Borough Secretary and Monitoring 
Officer 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To approve the scales of election fees paid to the Returning Officer for any 

Borough or Parish Council elections during 2018/19. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1  That the scale of election fees appended to this report be adopted for 2018/19     

in relation to any Borough/ Parish Council by-elections or Referendums which 
may be required. 

 
3. Issues and Choices 
 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 The local authority is required to appoint a Returning Officer to conduct these 
elections on their behalf. The Returning Officer is legally responsible and 
accountable for the management of elections. Each local authority is required 
to place the services of its staff at the disposal of the Returning Officer to help 
run the election. 

3.1.2 In order for the Returning Officer to be able to carry out their duties, Section 
36 (4) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 (For a district election 
including by-elections) states that the council may set a maximum scale of 
charges for the returning officer to use. The legislation states that a returning 
officer’s expenses for conducting an election shall be paid by the council but if 
a scale is set, the expenses shall not exceed those laid down in the scale. 

Report Title 
 

Returning Officer Fees and Expenses 

Appendices: 1 

87

Agenda Item 8



General Purposes Template/12/03/18 

3.1.3 For parish/town council elections, Section 36 (5) states that the council may 
similarly set a maximum scale of charges for the Returning Officer to use, 
which the district council is responsible for paying, but which shall be repaid to 
the district council by the parish council for which the election is held, if the 
district council so requires it to be paid. It is the policy of this council that 
parish councils are required to pay for elections. 

3.1.4 The local authority is required to appoint a Returning Officer to conduct these 
elections on their behalf. The Returning Officer is personally (not corporately) 
responsible for the management of elections. Each local authority is required 
to place the services of its staff at the disposal of the Returning Officer to help 
run the election. 

3.1.5 In Northampton Borough Council, the Returning Officer is the Council's 
Borough Secretary and Monitoring Officer.  Even though the Returning Officer 
is also an employee of the Council, at the time of an election his responsibility 
is completely separate. In order to run a local election the Returning Officer 
needs to employ and pay additional staff with different levels of responsibility. 
It is important that this is done fairly and transparently. In order to achieve this, 
the Council must agree a schedule of fees which they all use to pay staff to 
ensure that there is a consistent approach for everyone. 

3.1.5 There is no formal consensus of fees between the Northamptonshire local 
authorities. The fees currently paid by NBC are in line with those paid by 
Daventry District Council, however they have not been put through Council for 
approval. 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 
 
4.1 Policy 
 
4.1.1 The scale of the proposed election fees are in line with the Councils existing 

pay policy. 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 The costs of Parish Council elections are recoverable from the relevant Parish 

Council 
 

4.2.2 Northampton Borough Council has to meet the costs of any Borough Council 
elections including by-elections. It is important to ensure that the Returning 
Officer has sufficient funding to run the election, and can attract experience 
and committed staff to comply with legislation 

4.3 Legal 
  
4.3.1 Legal issues are covered within the body of the report 

 
4.4 Equality 
 
4.4.1 There are no diversity and equalities implications arising from the report 
 
 
 

88



General Purposes Template/12/03/18 

5. Background Papers 
 
5.1.1. None 
 

Diana Bowden 
Electoral Services Manager 

89



Appendix 1 

SCALE OF ELECTION FEES AND EXPENSES FOR LOCAL ELECTIONS 2018/19 

 

Returning Officer fee for conducting the election and generally 
performing the duties required. 

Fee 

 
Contested District Council elections. 
 
For the first 1000 local government electors within each electoral ward 
For each additional 500 local government electors or fraction thereof 

 
 
 
£100.00 
£38.00 

 
Uncontested District Council elections (for each electoral ward) 

 
£67.00 

 
Contested Parish Council elections 
 
For the first 500 local government electors within each electoral area 
For each additional 100 local government electors or fraction thereof 

 
 
 
£64.00 
£12.00 

 
Uncontested Parish Council elections (for each electoral area) 

 
£36.00 

 
Combined District and Parish elections (for each parish electoral area) 

 
£42.00 

 

Deputy Returning Officer (full powers) 25% of RO 
fee 

 

All equipment to be purchased, hired, altered or repaired Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Hire and fitting up of Polling Stations including heating, lighting, 
cleaning and damages and expenses paid in respect thereof 

Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Stationery at Polling Stations Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Printing and providing nomination forms, notices, ballot papers 
and other forms and documents required in and about the election 
or poll. 

Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Printing and issue of Polling Cards 
 

Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Despatch and receipt of postal voting packs Actual and 
necessary 
cost 

Travelling expenses for Returning Officer and elections staff Paid at 
HMRC 

90



mileage 
rate. 

Presiding Officer 
Single election 
Combined election 

 
£225.00 
£250.00 

Poll Clerk 
Single election 
Combined election 

 
£135.00 
£150.00 

Polling Station Inspector £260.00 
Senior Polling Station Inspector £275.00 
Counting Assistant  
Night time, weekend or bank holiday count (per hour) 
Day time count (per hour) 

 
£17.00 
£14.00 

Count Supervisor  
Night time count, weekend or bank holiday count (per hour) 
Day time count (per hour) 

 
£24.50 
£21.50 

Senior Supervisor 
Night time count, weekend or bank holiday count (per hour) 
Day time count (per hour) 

 
£30.75 
£27.75 

Count Manager  
Night time count, weekend or bank holiday count (per hour) 
Day time count (per hour) 

 
£43.25 
£40.25 

Porter/Security 
Night time count, weekend or bank holiday count (per hour) 
Day time count (per hour) 

 
£17.00 
£14.00 

Postal Vote Assistant  
Day time (per hour) 
Evening (per hour) 

 
£10.00 
£13.00 

Postal Vote Supervisor  
Day time (per hour) 
Evening (per hour) 

 
£15.00 
£18.00 

 

 

Note: 

With regard to other electoral activities and events where there is not a fees and 
charges order set by Government (this includes but is not limited to neighbourhood 
planning referendums, council tax referendums and local polls) this schedule shall 
be used for the basis of calculating fees and charges. 

 

 

 

 

91


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order
	TPO-232-land to the front of 27 Knights Court
	298095 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to address on register)
	298096 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to registered office address)
	298131 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to 27 Knights Court - Mr Weekes)
	298132 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to 27 Knights Court - Ms Shelswell)
	299329 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to Block Management Co address)
	Letter of objection
	Photo
	General Letter_ENQ20170764
	2017 11 21 7 Knights Court TEMPO assessment

	7 Confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order
	TPO 235 Boughton Green Rd order
	303673 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to University)
	303674 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to Taylor Wimpey)
	303675 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter (to Persimmon)
	303680 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Nptonshire Assoc. of Youth Clubs (NN3 6LL)
	303681 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - BLC Leather Tech
	303682 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Custodian for Charities etc c o Messrs Becke Phipps
	303683 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Nptonshire Assoc of Youth Clubs (NN3 6RU)
	303684 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Pall Mall 3 Limited
	303685 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Salvesen Insulated Frames Ltd
	303686 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Westleigh Office Park Management Co Ltd
	303687 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Mr Westaway of Welford
	303688 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - Mrs Westaway of Naseby
	303689 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - UK Leather Federation
	303690 - Tree Preservation Orders - Letter to adjacent land owner - NCC
	2018 02 26 letter of objection from Persimmon
	2018 02 23 LUC report on behalf of University
	2018 02 26 letter of objection from University
	2018 02 27 TPO 235 Persimmon response
	2012 02 27 TPO 235 University response
	TPO 235 TEMPO model

	8 Returning Officer Fees and Expenses
	Election Fees 2018.19


